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          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. Welcome to the Civil Service and Labor

          4  Committee hearing. My name is Joe Addabbo, I chair

          5  the Committee. I want to thank you all for being

          6  here. We will have three pieces of legislation that

          7  we will be hearing today.

          8                 Let me first introduce the staff. To

          9  my right is Counsel to the Committee, Mr. Tom Curry.

         10  I would also like to thank Joan Povolny, our Policy

         11  Analyst; Daniel Turriago, our Financial Analyst; and

         12  Sarah Mikutel, Communications; Steve Adenesio, my

         13  Legislative Aid.

         14                 I will also introduce my colleagues

         15  at this point. To my far left, Larry Seabrook,

         16  Council member; and next to him, to his right, our

         17  Majority Whip, Council Member Leroy Comrie.

         18                 Again, thank you all for being here

         19  and I'll introduce colleagues as they come along.

         20                 We have three pieces of legislation

         21  today. First, Intro. 380-A, and that would amend the

         22  Administrative Code in relation to collective

         23  bargaining rights for certain City employees.

         24                 Second, we have Intro. 561, which

         25  relates to the compensation of the Fire Department
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          2  Pension Fund Medical Board.

          3                 And thirdly, and lastly, Intro. 602,

          4  which concerns the health insurance coverage for a

          5  surviving spouse or domestic partner and children of

          6  deceased uniformed Correctional and Sanitation

          7  workers.

          8                 And it is actually Intro. 602 that we

          9  will start with today.

         10                 Intro. 602 would amend the

         11  Administrative Code in relation to providing health

         12  care coverage to surviving spouses and domestic

         13  partners and children of deceased uniformed

         14  Correctional and Sanitation workers.

         15                 Currently the Mayor, at his or her

         16  discretion, can provide health insurance coverage

         17  for a surviving spouse, domestic partner, and

         18  dependent children of uniformed Correctional and

         19  Sanitation employees who died before January 27th,

         20  2004.

         21                 Intro. 602 would extend this time

         22  period to the end date of February 8th, 2005.  The

         23  cause of death would still be required to be a

         24  natural and proximate result of an accident or

         25  injury incurred during the course of employment.
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          2                 Tragically, on February 7th, 2005,

          3  Rodney Page was killed when his garbage truck

          4  rear-ended a tractor trailer carrying steel beams on

          5  the New Jersey Turnpike. Page was returning to his

          6  assigned City garage in South Ozone Park, from

          7  emptying a load at the waste station in Jersey City

          8  when the crash happened, at 10:40 p.m. Page left

          9  behind a wife and 13-year-old daughter. Mr. Page

         10  came out of the garage that's located in my

         11  district. So my personal sympathies to Mr. Page and

         12  his family and to the Department.

         13                 Accordingly, in order to give the

         14  Mayor the authority to extend health insurance

         15  coverage to the surviving spouse and child of this

         16  recently deceased uniformed member of the Sanitation

         17  Department, the Committee will consider the

         18  amendment to the code provided in Intro. 602.

         19                 This proposed law would take effect

         20  immediately upon his enactment. And, again, the

         21  Committee extends its sympathies.

         22                 Today, our first panel will be Mike

         23  Bimonte, First Deputy Commissioner for Operations at

         24  the Department of Sanitation, and Harry Nespoli,

         25  Uniformed Sanitation Association.
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          2                 Gentlemen, thank you so much for

          3  being here. We greatly appreciate your time. If you

          4  would just state your name, and please give your

          5  testimony.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE: My

          7  name is Michael Bimonte. I'm First Deputy

          8  Commissioner for Operations for New York City

          9  Department of Sanitation.

         10                 To my right is Harry Nespoli,

         11  President, Uniformed Sanitation Workers Union, Local

         12  831.

         13                 Good afternoon, Chairperson Addabbo,

         14  and members of the Committee on Civil Service and

         15  Labor.

         16                 I welcome the opportunity to appear

         17  before you this afternoon to speak in support of

         18  Intro. No. 602 that would amend Section 12-126 of

         19  the New York City Administrative Code by providing

         20  health insurance coverage to certain surviving

         21  spouses, domestic partners and children of deceased

         22  uniformed, correctional, and Sanitation employees

         23  who die as a result of an accident or injury

         24  sustained in the line of duty.

         25                 As you know, the Department lost a
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          2  member of its uniformed family, has prompted the

          3  legislation under consideration today.

          4                 On February 7th, 2005, Uniformed

          5  Sanitation Worker Rodney Page was killed in the line

          6  of duty. Briefly, the facts of that tragic accident

          7  are as follows: At approximately 11:00 p.m., on

          8  Monday, February 7th, 2005, Sanitation Worker Rodney

          9  Page, a four and a half year Department veteran, was

         10  involved in a vehicle accident.

         11                 The accident involved the Sanitation

         12  collection truck that Sanitation Worker Page was

         13  operating and a flatbed truck that was transporting

         14  steel beams. Sanitation Worker Page was pronounced

         15  dead at the scene.

         16                 Sanitation Worker Rodney Page, at 47

         17  years of age, is survived by a wife, Ingrid, and a

         18  daughter, Azolo.

         19                 Intro. No. 602 would extend health

         20  benefit coverages to the surviving spouse and minor

         21  child of Sanitation Worker Rodney Page.

         22                 Further, it would allow the City to

         23  recognize the dedication of both uniformed

         24  Correctional and Sanitation employees, such as

         25  Rodney Page, to give their lives in the line of duty
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          2  and at the same time, ease the financial burden

          3  faced by their families who must otherwise obtain

          4  separate health insurance coverage.

          5                 I thank you for your expeditious

          6  action on this bill, and ask for your favorable vote

          7  today.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MR. NESPOLI: Well, I'm just going to

         10  talk about Rodney, all right? You don't mind that.

         11                 First of all, I'd like to thank the

         12  Committee for their time today. I certainly would

         13  like to thank the First Deputy over here. We don't

         14  always agree on everything. It seems like when the

         15  chips are really down, we have a tendency to get

         16  together, labor and management gets together, and

         17  this is what it's about.

         18                 It's really unfair. Rodney. First of

         19  all, Mike, I think he was 37 years of age, so he was

         20  a young guy. He was only four years on the job. The

         21  man worked. He was full of life. He used to come, he

         22  was that one person in the garage, that just lit up

         23  the garage. Now, you have to understand something,

         24  garages you just don't light up. There's darkness in

         25  there, there's a smell in there. When he came in he
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          2  had a music he used to put on in the garage, and he

          3  just lit up the place. He was that type of person.

          4  He was very conscientious with his family. He used

          5  to work a lot of overtime, because he knew where he

          6  was going. There's no doubt in my mind that anybody

          7  that knew him, he was going to be an officer before

          8  you knew it.

          9                 On February 7th, that was taken away

         10  from him, and to work on security for his family is

         11  very important.

         12                 It seems like the only time I'm here

         13  is for this particular here. The last three years

         14  I've been here three times. Three Sanitation

         15  workers, and one was a lady, that got killed. And I

         16  think it's very important that the families that are

         17  left behind get represented with the health and the

         18  pension that he really deserves, because he's out

         19  there every day, for the citizens of New York and

         20  the taxpayers doing his job.

         21                 And, unfortunately, that accident, we

         22  can't overturn it. But he's gone now. And I think

         23  it's just the right thing to do, and I'm really glad

         24  that management is here along-side me doing it also.

         25                 That's all I have to say.
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          2                 Is there any questions?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Nespoli.

          5                 Any questions from the Committee?

          6                 Again, I thank you both for being

          7  here. Mr. Page was, I believe, from Garage 10, which

          8  is in my district, and in my conversations with

          9  Superintendent Richard Campbell, we spoke very

         10  highly of Mr. Page, and I want to thank him now also

         11  for his dedicated work in my district and also for

         12  the City, and, again, my sympathies to his family.

         13                 So, again, thank you very much.

         14                 The Committee, once we have a quorum

         15  here of Council members, we will vote on Intro. 602,

         16  and as Chair of the Civil Service and Labor

         17  Committee, I, again, support the Intro, and I

         18  request my colleagues to vote yes on it, and I look

         19  forward to the Mayor's signature on this soon.

         20                 So, again, we'll be looking forward

         21  to voting on this today.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Gentlemen, thank

         25  you very much.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BIMONTE:

          3  Thank you for the time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

          5                 We have requests from Council Member

          6  Seabrook and Council Member Comrie to be also

          7  co-sponsors on the bill, as well. Thank you,

          8  gentlemen.

          9                 Just as a point of information, back

         10  in January of 2005, earlier this year, this

         11  Committee had listened to Introduction 286, which I

         12  had introduced basically saying that these benefits

         13  should be afforded to everybody who works for the

         14  City provided that they, you know, again, passed

         15  away in the line of duty, that the benefits should

         16  go to their families and their surviving spouses or

         17  domestic partner, as well. We're trying to push it

         18  for every City employee. It's the right thing to do,

         19  and we will continue to push Intro. 286 as well. So,

         20  I'm hopeful that some day the Mayor will sign this

         21  Intro as well, some day.

         22                 Our next Intro that we'll be

         23  entertaining today is Intro. 561, at the request of

         24  the Mayor.

         25                 Intro. 561 will amend the
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          2  Administration Code with respect to appointing

          3  authorities of the Fire Department Pension Fund

          4  Medical Board and the composition of the members of

          5  such board.

          6                 According to the Fire Department

          7  there was a dramatic increase in the number of

          8  disability-related retirement applications filed

          9  since the tragic deaths of September 11th, 2001.

         10  According to the Bloomberg Administration, a

         11  significant backlog of unprocessed

         12  disability-related retirement applications exist, in

         13  part due to the increase in such application.

         14                 As a result of the existing backlog

         15  and processing requirements, retirement applications

         16  require more than one year to process, a delay that

         17  burdens both the retiring employee, and the FDNY,

         18  having only one medical board.

         19                 Intro. 561 would allow additional

         20  medical boards to be convened when needed to

         21  expedite the retirement process for active

         22  firefighters.

         23                 According to the Bloomberg

         24  Administration, the ability to convene additional

         25  medical boards would enable the FDNY to more
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          2  efficiently process the pending application of

          3  retiring members and allocate the supplemental

          4  portion of their pension that is withheld until the

          5  disability application has been processed.

          6                 It would also enable the FDNY to

          7  quickly resolve the employment status of retiring

          8  members and quickly fill positions opened by

          9  retiring members.

         10                 This bill has been modeled after the

         11  medical boards of the New York City Employees

         12  Retirement System, and the New York City Police

         13  Department.

         14                 According to the Bloomberg

         15  Administration, given the large number of pending

         16  pension applications, the FDNY would benefit from

         17  the ability to convene alternate medical boards,

         18  just as nice as the NYPD has benefitted in the past.

         19                 At this point we're going to call up

         20  a representative of the Administration, Mylan Lee

         21  Denerstein.

         22                 Thank you very much. From the FDNY. I

         23  thank you very much for your time here today.

         24                 Also, Alexander Fisher, as well.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Good
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          2  afternoon, Chairperson Addabbo and Council members.

          3                 My name is Mylan Lee Denerstein, and

          4  I am the Deputy Commissioner for Legal Affairs for

          5  the New York City Fire Department.

          6                 At Fire Commissioner Nicholas

          7  Scoppetta's direction, I serve as the Chairperson on

          8  his behalf of the Board of Trustees for the Fire

          9  Department pension fund.

         10                 Today I will speak briefly about

         11  Intro. 561, the proposed law seeking to amend the

         12  Administrative Code of the City of New York to

         13  permit additional medical boards to be convened to

         14  review disability retirement applications.

         15                 As you are aware, we strongly support

         16  this bill that will streamline the processing of

         17  pensions to the benefit of our firefighters and also

         18  the Department.

         19                 Since the tragic events of September

         20  11th, 2001, the Fire Department has experienced a

         21  dramatic increase in the number of applications by

         22  our uniformed members for disability retirement.

         23                 From 1999 through 2001, the

         24  Department processed an average of 407 applications

         25  per year.
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          2                 Over the next three years, the FDNY

          3  processed an average of 661 applications per year,

          4  668 in 2002, 719 in 2003, and 597 in 2004. That

          5  represents a 62 percent increase over the prior

          6  three years.

          7                 This increasingly large number of

          8  firefighters applying for disability retirement over

          9  the last three years, has led to a significant

         10  backlog in processing the applications.

         11                 In many cases, a disability

         12  retirement application requires more than one year

         13  to process, a delay that burdens both the retiring

         14  employee, as you can imagine, and the Fire

         15  Department.

         16                 Intro. 561 would simply allow

         17  additional medical boards to be convened when needed

         18  to expedite the retirement process for both active

         19  firefighters and retired firefighters who are unable

         20  to fulfill their duty.

         21                 With more medical boards, the FDNY

         22  will be better able to quickly resolve the

         23  employment status of disabled firefighters and hire

         24  new firefighters to fill open slots left by those

         25  retirements.
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          2                 In addition, the ability to convene

          3  additional medical boards will enable the Fire

          4  Department to process more efficiently the pending

          5  disability applications of retired members, and to

          6  allocate more expeditiously the supplemental portion

          7  of the pension that is withheld until a disability

          8  application has been finalized.

          9                 As you said, Chairperson, the bill is

         10  modeled after, and is consistent with Sections

         11  13-123 and 13-223 of the Administrative Code, which

         12  concern the medical boards of the New York City

         13  Employment -- Employees Retirement System, NYCERS,

         14  and the New York City Police Department system.

         15                 Pursuant to these two provisions,

         16  both NYCERS and NYPD can convene additional medical

         17  boards as they are needed.

         18                 Given the large number of pending

         19  pension applications, it is clear that the FDNY and

         20  firefighters will benefit from the ability to

         21  convene alternate medical boards, just as NYCERS and

         22  NYPD have.

         23                 The proposed legislation would

         24  empower the existing Board of Trustees, the

         25  Commissioner of Department of Health and Mental
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          2  Hygiene, and the Commissioner of the Department of

          3  Citywide Administrative Services to each appoint up

          4  to four alternate physicians to make up alternate

          5  medical boards.

          6                 The legislation would also amend

          7  Administrative Code section 13-323, to change an

          8  outdated reference to the Commissioner of Hospitals

          9  to the successor, the Department of Health and

         10  Mental Hygiene Commissioner, and also change the

         11  physician appointed by the Chief Medical Examiner of

         12  the City's Civil Service Commission, to a physician

         13  appointed by the Department of Citywide

         14  Administrative Services Commissioner.

         15                 Clearly, it is beneficial for both

         16  the Department and for individual firefighters to

         17  move the pension process along more quickly, and to

         18  resolve more expeditiously the pension status of

         19  hundreds of retired and about to retire

         20  firefighters.

         21                 The Fire Department strongly supports

         22  this legislation. Thank you for allowing me to speak

         23  today.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Ms.

         25  Denerstein.
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          2                 Again, I appreciate, and I commend

          3  the Administration's attempt to address the backlog

          4  situation with regard to the FDNY retirements, and,

          5  again, I thank you for your time here today.

          6                 Let me just take a moment to

          7  acknowledge Council Member Sara Gonzalez, who has

          8  just joined us. Thank you very much. She is a member

          9  of the Committee.

         10                 Before I get questions from my

         11  Committee members, I have a couple of questions. I'm

         12  going to break them down with the questions

         13  regarding the existing board and questions regarding

         14  the proposal of additional boards. First are the

         15  existing board; how often does it meet?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: The

         17  existing medical board meets weekly.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Staffed

         19  sufficiently, in your opinion?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: I am

         21  always an advocate for more resources for the

         22  Department, in any area.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Roughly how much

         24  funding does it take to, now with just the existing

         25  medical board, how much funding does it take to run
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          2  this medical board? How much funding is in place for

          3  it?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: I

          5  would have to get back to you with that. I can talk

          6  to our budget people to figure that out, but I don't

          7  have that figure off the top of my head.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes, that would

          9  be helpful. I would appreciate that.

         10                 If need be, if we weren't to add

         11  additional boards, is it possible that, like you

         12  said, and I agree with you, Ms. Denerstein, that

         13  additional staff is always helpful and useful, and

         14  may make this existing board more efficient, is it

         15  possible that this existing board can meet on a more

         16  regular basis, possibly? I know that you said they

         17  can meet weekly, but can they meet, again, to

         18  address the backlog, before even possibly this piece

         19  of legislation goes forward; is it possible that

         20  this regular board can meet, the existing board can

         21  meet more regularly, more than just weekly?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: It's

         23  certainly something we could explore with them. We

         24  have discussed that option with the Existing 1B

         25  board, and given their schedules, they're all
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          2  doctors who perform this service, but have their own

          3  practices and surgery schedules, I don't know how

          4  likely it would be.

          5                 In the past when it's been raised

          6  with them, they have said it would impose a burden

          7  on their ability to continue their practices, which

          8  is, obviously, the bread and butter of their living.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Sure.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: So, I

         11  don't think that's a likely option.

         12                 Moreover, I mean, NYCERS and NYPD

         13  both have these provisions. This is simply giving

         14  the Fire Department Pension Fund the same

         15  alternative, and God forbid something else horrific

         16  happens, it would at least have the legislation in

         17  place so the Department would be in the position to

         18  quickly respond.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So I'm clear,

         20  though, because, again, your statement made it seem

         21  like the additional boards are required for, God

         22  forbid, another tragedy; is it for that purpose, or

         23  for the purpose of the backlogs?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Both.

         25  Both.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Which is more of

          3  a priority? I mean, again, where was the stimulus

          4  behind the need for additional boards? Was it

          5  preparing for another, again, tragedy, or to address

          6  the --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Both.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Both.

          9                 If I may just again center on the

         10  proposal of additional boards?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Sure.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Who is basically

         13  behind -- who in the Fire Department created this

         14  idea of additional boards? Do we have somebody in

         15  particular, specifically?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Well,

         17  I was certainly responsible, along with Ms. Fisher,

         18  who is here today, in drafting the proposed

         19  legislation. And then it went to the Law Department

         20  for their review, and that was done at the

         21  Commissioner's direction, and that being the Fire

         22  Commissioner, Nicholas Scoppetta.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And do we have a

         24  cost? Again, when I look at additional or new

         25  legislation, given that the City is still within a
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          2  financial situation here, we like to look at the

          3  possible cost of these additional boards.

          4                 Additional boards, in my thought,

          5  would mean additional staff members, as well,

          6  possibly even more than what we had suggested

          7  earlier that they increase the staff of the existing

          8  board, how much money are we looking to additionally

          9  put into this proposal for additional boards and

         10  additional staff members?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: I

         12  would have to get back to you on that question.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. That would

         14  be important, obviously. Of course, being, you know,

         15  again, financial situations being what they are in

         16  the City today.

         17                 Has the Fire Department enlisted any

         18  input from, again, the firefighters, the UFA, UFOA?

         19  Has there been any input?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: At this point?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: No.

         23  And the only thing I can say with respect to that

         24  is, obviously numerous individuals on the board,

         25  board members, have complained about how long the
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          2  process is taking for a disability application.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

          4                 We had notified the UFA and UFOA of

          5  this hearing roughly about two weeks ago, again just

          6  as protocol, they had forwarded me a letter, a copy

          7  of a letter that was addressed actually to yourself,

          8  with regards to a Mr. Michael Vecchi? If I

          9  understand.

         10                 Just again, it sort of relates to

         11  what is being proposed here. Because I understand

         12  that along with the FDNY, who is again discussing

         13  this proposal of additional boards, that Mr. Vecchia

         14  might have had some type of role in this proposal;

         15  can you shed some light on that possibly?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: I

         17  really can't at this point.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You can't, okay.

         19                 Possibly at a future date?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN:

         21  Possibly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Possibly.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Just

         24  so you know, I've only been with the Department for

         25  about a year and a half.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. How is it

          3  going so far?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN:

          5  Terrific.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: I

          8  think it's a wonderful agency with outstanding

          9  members.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         11                 Again, the information regarding this

         12  letter, because this was a concern for me, and also

         13  the question about funding.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: With regards to

         16  funding, how would the -- again, with regards to

         17  this Board, I understand under the NYCERS and under

         18  the NYPD Corpus funding basically funds, again, a

         19  portion of the role that the boards play; how about

         20  with this proposal of new boards, or even just using

         21  the existing board, how would the Corpus funding

         22  play a role in that?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: We

         24  don't have Corpus funding.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.
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          2                 Was it ever applied for? Was it ever

          3  considered as looking into it?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: I

          5  believe that it was, but, again, in the year and a

          6  half that I've been at the Department, which is

          7  since about October 15th, I haven't been involved in

          8  any serious discussion of Corpus funding.

          9                 I don't really know about the

         10  history, too much about it, before I arrived.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, a side

         12  concern of mine here again is that if the proposal

         13  for the Fire Department has been modeled after

         14  NYCERS, and modeled after NYPD --

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: If their funding

         17  comes from Corpus funding, and now our proposal here

         18  for FDNY is not, it's a question --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN:

         20  Right. Our funding would come out of the Fire

         21  Department's budget.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right. Which,

         23  again, is limited as it is. The Fire Department does

         24  a great job with what they have.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So, again, I

          4  think the idea of acknowledging possibly the need

          5  for funding through Corpus funding, that may be a

          6  discussion as well, if we look into these existing

          7  boards, or even not the additional boards, but even

          8  the existing boards.

          9                 The current backlog, do we have a

         10  number? I know the statistics I have from 2004, do

         11  we have any 2005 numbers regarding how much of a

         12  backlog there is?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: I

         14  don't. But I could get those to you fairly easily.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That would help.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: I

         17  think it's close to what the number is in about

         18  2004, maybe a little bit less so far.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, see if

         20  there is a trend. You know, obviously there has been

         21  a decrease in that number.

         22                 At this point, any questions from my

         23  colleagues?

         24                 I've been joined right here to my

         25  left by Council Member Dennis Gallagher from Queens.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Good

          3  afternoon.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good to see you.

          5                 Any other questions from my

          6  colleagues?

          7                 Okay. At this point, Ms. Denerstein,

          8  I do appreciate your time, hearing your testimony,

          9  and definitely appreciate the information back on

         10  the items that we had mentioned.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Sure.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: On the items

         13  that we had mentioned, and obviously that would help

         14  in seeing whether we could go further with this

         15  piece of legislation, okay?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DENERSTEIN: Okay,

         17  thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Our next panel on this Intro., this

         21  Intro., again, is 561, is James Slevin, from

         22  Uniformed Firefighters Association, and Pete Gorman,

         23  UFOA.

         24                 Gentlemen, please step forward.

         25                 Gentlemen, thank you very much for
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          2  your time and testimony. If you will please state

          3  your name for the record and give your testimony.

          4                 MR. GORMAN: Thank you. Good

          5  afternoon, Chairman Addabbo and members of the

          6  Committee. My name is Peter Gorman, I'm the

          7  President of the Uniformed Fire Officers

          8  Association, representing 2,500 lieutenants and

          9  captains, battalion chiefs, deputy chiefs,

         10  supervising fire marshals and medical officers of

         11  the New York City Fire Department.

         12                 I am here to voice my strong

         13  objection to Intro. 561. Although the purpose of the

         14  legislation appears to provide better services to

         15  our members, and certainly something we are

         16  interested in and the union is providing services to

         17  those members that go before the Pension Board, I

         18  question the motives of the City and the Department.

         19                 Attached to my testimony is a

         20  memorandum of support from the Mayor's Office signed

         21  by Anthony Piscatelli, who is a legislative

         22  representative for the Mayor.

         23                 Back in 2003, there was legislation

         24  introduced in Albany. The legislation was written by

         25  the City of New York with the Fire Department by
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          2  Corp Counsel. It was not written by labor.

          3                 And in the reasons for support, if

          4  you look at it, Skip Piscatelli says that they

          5  wanted to enhance services to the members of the

          6  Fire Department. And, again, I applaud them for

          7  doing that.

          8                 At the time, we were the only pension

          9  system, we still are, without Corpus funding,

         10  NYCERS, Board of Ed, police and teacher retirement

         11  systems.

         12                 The City said, why can't firefighters

         13  have the same benefits? Especially in economic

         14  times, Corpus funding relieves the local budget of

         15  some of the fiduciary responsibilities of providing

         16  benefits.

         17                 Amazingly, Steve Rush, the Assistant

         18  Commissioner for Budget, appeared before a Home Rule

         19  Committee of the City Council back in June of 2003,

         20  in support of the legislation.

         21                 The union did not speak against it,

         22  and by some strange occurrence, the City currently

         23  and unexpectedly withdrew their support for their

         24  legislation. Never told us why, never said anything

         25  on the record with the Board of Trustees as to why
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          2  they opposed that legislation.

          3                 At the same time, because of budget

          4  cuts that everyone was faced with, police, fire,

          5  education, Commissioner Scoppetta was in the process

          6  of closing eight fire companies because he had no

          7  place else to cut.

          8                 One of the things he did do was

          9  reduce the staff of the pension bureau, clerical

         10  staff, by 13 people.

         11                 The problem with getting through the

         12  pension board is not just going before the doctors,

         13  but the process of all the clerical things that have

         14  to be done.

         15                 The Department lost 13 positions, at

         16  a time with Corpus funding, that budgetary

         17  responsibility would have been shifted to a Corpus

         18  funding type of mechanism. And the City said it was

         19  a wonderful idea, now I have an internal memo from

         20  Steve Rush OLR that said they withdrew the

         21  legislation. They wrote it, and they withdrew it.

         22                 Then they turned around and they cut

         23  the services to our members in tough budget times.

         24  We advocated for public safety not to close fire

         25  houses, we didn't complain about losing clerical
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          2  staff, but it did affect the Pension Board's ability

          3  to address member needs.

          4                 The Department did that. And now they

          5  come before you two years later and say, you know,

          6  we really want to propose legislation because we're

          7  really concerned with the poor members who are

          8  backlogged. Pure hypocrisy.

          9                 If they're concerned with providing

         10  services for our members, and to their credit they

         11  did restore some of those positions a year or two

         12  later, but the Fire Department lags significantly

         13  behind every other pension system of the fire in

         14  this City. And the City steadfastly refuses to give

         15  our members, who risk their lives to this City, the

         16  same services as teachers, Board of Ed, NYCERS and

         17  police officers. I don't know why.

         18                 And this legislation today, on the

         19  surface it makes sense, they certainly can convene

         20  this Board more than once if they have to. Mylan

         21  Denerstein, no one in the Board of Trustees has ever

         22  on the record told us they're very concerned with

         23  the backlog of cases. And there are a lot of things

         24  they could do. If you're concerned with the cases,

         25  increase the number of clerical people, or at least
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          2  they never once went on the record and told us why.

          3  They drafted legislation, they marched it up to

          4  Albany. They got sponsorship for it. They came and

          5  sent their Assistant Commissioner for Budget to

          6  support the legislation, and then they withdrew it.

          7  And that really hurt our members' ability to get

          8  services.

          9                 And the Fire Department after that

         10  had to cut the Department by 13 positions.

         11                 So, if the Department is concerned

         12  with providing services for our members, I would

         13  suggest -- they can get the bill, it was drafted a

         14  couple of years ago, resurrect the bill, get a

         15  couple of sponsors, and I'm sure the UFA and the

         16  UFOA will be up there supporting it.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Gorman.

         20                 MR. SLEVIN: Good afternoon, Mr.

         21  Chairman, members of the Council. My name is James

         22  Slevin. I'm the Vice President of the Uniformed

         23  Firefighters Association.

         24                 I'd like to thank you for the

         25  opportunity to testify here before your Committee.
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          2                 Let me start off by saying at this

          3  point the Uniformed Firefighters are strongly

          4  opposed to Intro. 561, and in addition to being the

          5  Vice President of the Uniformed Firefighters

          6  Association, I'm also a trustee of the New York City

          7  Fire Department Pension Fund.

          8                 Number one, we're very skeptical with

          9  this legislation. The manner in which it was

         10  introduced, as President Gorman had stated, it was

         11  never discussed at a Pension Board meeting. So, the

         12  pension trustees were disregarded in their input

         13  into this legislation. It is completely one-sided

         14  from the Administration.

         15                 This legislation would be putting the

         16  cart before the horse. We have gone on the record,

         17  as they have stated, requesting some way to speed up

         18  the process for our members, but we have been told

         19  on the record at pension meetings that it is not

         20  possible to speed up the process, because they don't

         21  have the staff to process more applications.

         22                 There is nothing in the current law

         23  that states that the current 1B medical board may

         24  not meet more than one time a week. They had the

         25  ability to meet more than one time a week, but they
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          2  do not have the staff to process the applications.

          3                 We don't believe at this time it's

          4  necessary to appoint an alternate medical board.

          5  Because when you appoint an all medical board you're

          6  going to get a different set of doctors that may

          7  have a different opinion, a different set of

          8  standards, a different interpretation of the laws.

          9                 As it stands now, we have a medical

         10  board, that although we may not always agree with

         11  their interpretation of the law, we do -- it is good

         12  to have some sort of standard that one board will

         13  apply.

         14                 An alternate medical board under this

         15  current proposed legislation does not guarantee that

         16  you would have that.

         17                 And another reason we feel that this

         18  legislation is not genuine, they state that they

         19  expect the current trends in retirement to continue.

         20  We just heard that they are a little lower this

         21  year, and we believe that trend of lower retirements

         22  will continue.

         23                 The fact of the matter is, when the

         24  Department was in a position to stem the overflow of

         25  retirements, they failed to take any action to
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          2  retain senior personnel that would have curtailed

          3  the retirements.

          4                 As a result, 75, 80 percent of our

          5  job is going to have to wait at least another 15, 20

          6  years before they can go ahead with the regular

          7  retirement process.

          8                 So, there will not be a surge in

          9  retirements, unless we have some other catastrophic

         10  even like 9/11 where members would come down with

         11  some lung illnesses.

         12                 So, we don't believe that this

         13  legislation is genuine at this time. We think it is

         14  putting the cart before the horse, and that's why we

         15  stand in opposition to Intro. No. 561.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Gentlemen, thank

         17  you very much for your testimony. And, again, I want

         18  to thank your membership, also, for their dedication

         19  to the City. Thank you for the work that they do.

         20                 Again, a couple of questions I may

         21  have before maybe my colleagues have questions. With

         22  regards to the existing medical board, what I'm

         23  hearing from both of you is that we can work with

         24  the existing medical board as it exists now in

         25  addressing these, you know, retirement situations,
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          2  if they meet more often and increase staff

          3  basically; is that correct?

          4                 MR. GORMAN: Yes, that's correct. And

          5  I think that one of the things that limits the board

          6  of meeting more often is the lack of support staff

          7  that the Pension Board doesn't have.

          8                 So, if you want to address the

          9  problem, and you really believe you need more

         10  medical boards, you could have this existing Board

         11  meet more than once. In other to move that process,

         12  you have to have enough clerical staff and support

         13  staff to prepare the cases to go before the 1B

         14  doctors.

         15                 So, legislation does not address that

         16  at all.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm also

         18  curious, based on previous testimony, about the cost

         19  factor, what it would cost to increase the staff on

         20  the current board, and then what it would cost to do

         21  the additional boards, and their increased amount of

         22  staff. So...

         23                 MR. SLEVIN: Well, at this time I'm

         24  not privy to that information what the additional

         25  cost would be. But if New York City Fire Department
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          2  Pension Fund was brought to the level of the other

          3  four systems in New York City, with Corpus funding,

          4  those funds could be addressed by the pension fund

          5  itself.

          6                 As it stands now, we don't have the

          7  power as the Board to higher additional staff and

          8  additional, and get the additional resources that we

          9  need, that every other system in this City currently

         10  has.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: If I may,

         12  because President Gorman had brought this up about

         13  the Corpus funding, that basically funding was

         14  offered and then obviously taken back, if I'm not

         15  mistaken, how critical -- again, it's with the

         16  NYCER's program and it's with the NYPD program, not

         17  with FDNY, how critical is the Corpus funding?

         18                 MR. GORMAN: Well, we think first it's

         19  critical for two reasons. First, when you have five

         20  pension systems and you single out one pension

         21  system, that unfortunately has a lot of accidental

         22  cases, why we would be the only system, the one

         23  system that's probably in greater need of that than

         24  any other system, with the exception of the NYPD,

         25  because of the nature of their work, that they don't
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          2  have Corpus funding.

          3                 And the City, to their credit, wrote

          4  legislation a couple of years ago, and we supported

          5  it, and at the last minute withdrew it, and it was

          6  legislation drafted by them. So, it wasn't like,

          7  well, we didn't like some things the union put in

          8  the legislation. We did not draft the legislation.

          9  The legislation was drafted by Corp Counsel.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And also, based

         11  on previous testimony today, the lack of input.

         12  Again, I'm a more inclusionary person than

         13  exclusionary person, so the lack of input by UFA and

         14  UFOA concerns me a little bit as well. I am hopeful

         15  in the future the Administration, again, would look

         16  for your input on this proposal.

         17                 Any questions from my colleagues at

         18  this point?

         19                 Seeing none, gentlemen, I thank you

         20  for your time and testimony today.

         21                 MR. GORMAN: Thank you.

         22                 MR. SLEVIN: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And finally,

         24  ladies and gentlemen, the last piece of legislation

         25  today that we will be hearing is Intro. 380-A.
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          2  Thirty-one sponsors in the City Council. Intro.

          3  380-A is a bill that would amend the Administrative

          4  Code of the City of New York, in relation to

          5  collective bargaining rights of City employees.

          6                 City's uniformed forces in Police,

          7  Fire, Sanitation and Correction Departments have

          8  been given certain unique bargaining rights under

          9  this City's collective bargaining law.

         10                 This proposed amendment would

         11  authorize unions representing various employees to

         12  collectively bargain with the City directly, rather

         13  than part of the larger group.

         14                 Intro. 380-A incorporates additional

         15  classes of titles in other City agencies whom the

         16  City Council finds that their job functions are more

         17  similar to those performed by uniformed members of

         18  the Fire, Police, Sanitation and Correction

         19  Departments.

         20                 This is not to alter the terms nor

         21  conditions of the employment, but merely the

         22  procedure, the procedural manner in which bargaining

         23  between the City and unions would occur.

         24                 The following titles are added as per

         25  this Intro. 380-A, and they are fire protection
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          2  inspectors, traffic enforcement agents, school

          3  safety agents, sanitation enforcement agents,

          4  Department of Homeless Services has special

          5  officers, special senior officers, supervising

          6  special officers, and principal special officers,

          7  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, similar

          8  officers, Department of Juvenile Justice, similar

          9  officers, Human Resources Administration similar

         10  officers, Administration of Child Services, similar

         11  officers, Taxi and Limousine Commission would

         12  include taxi and limousine inspectors, supervising

         13  taxi and limousine inspectors, senior taxi and

         14  limousine inspectors and associate taxi and

         15  limousine inspectors.

         16                 Department of Transportation would

         17  include parking control specialists, and associate

         18  parking control specialists.  Department of Parks

         19  and Recreation would include urban park rangers, and

         20  associate urban park rangers.

         21                 And the Department of Finance would

         22  include deputy sheriffs, supervising deputy

         23  sheriffs, and administrative sheriffs.

         24                 I have here from the Administration

         25  -- it's now 35 sponsors, as we speak.
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          2                 I have here a letter from the

          3  Administration, which I will read in part, it's a

          4  letter in opposition to Intro. 380-A.

          5                 "Dear Council Member Addabbo:

          6                 On behalf of the Bloomberg

          7  Administration, I am writing this letter to express

          8  the City's opposition to Intro. 380-A which is

          9  presently before the Civil Service and Labor

         10  Committee.

         11                 This bill is illegal for several

         12  reasons. The Council does not have the authority to

         13  act unilaterally on matters that are exclusively the

         14  subject of collective bargaining.

         15                 This bill would curtail the power of

         16  the Mayor and Mayoral agencies to set the terms and

         17  conditions of employment for City employees.

         18                 Finally, this bill is similar to

         19  local laws which are currently the subject of

         20  pending litigation between the Administration and

         21  the Council.

         22                 Under the State Taylor Law and the

         23  City Charter, the power to negotiate collective

         24  bargaining agreements clearly rest with the Mayor,

         25  as the City's Chief Executive Officer, not the City
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          2  Council. The Council may only enact legislation

          3  needed to implement changes recommended by the Mayor

          4  as the City's statutory collective bargaining

          5  representative, and may not adopt bills urged upon

          6  by employee organizations in an effort to circumvent

          7  the prescribed bargaining process.

          8                 This bill is inconsistent with the

          9  Taylor Law and therefore is invalid. This

         10  legislation also curtails the power of the Mayor and

         11  Mayoral agencies to set the terms and conditions of

         12  the employment for City employees.

         13                 The Mayor and Mayoral agencies have

         14  responsibilities regarding determinations of salary

         15  and other terms.

         16                 Further, there are strong policy

         17  reasons for not enacting this legislation. There is

         18  neither doubt nor argument that those employees

         19  working in the titles affected by Intro. 380-A are

         20  dedicated and are working.

         21                 However, enactment of this

         22  legislation could have the debilitating consequences

         23  for the collective bargaining framework that now

         24  governs the City and its municipal unions.

         25                 For the reasons stated above, the
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          2  Administration strongly urges that the Civil Service

          3  and Labor Committee and the City Council as a whole

          4  decline to pass this bill."

          5                 Signed Karen Meara, from the

          6  Administration.

          7                 At this point I would like the

          8  Majority Whip for the City Council, Council Member

          9  Leroy Comrie, the prime sponsor of this bill,

         10  created this bill, to give a statement.

         11                 Council Member Comrie.

         12                 Thank you, Mr. Chair. I appreciate

         13  the opportunity to speak.

         14                 This legislation was intended to

         15  create an injustice. This is an injustice that has

         16  been in existence for quite a long time. Presently

         17  specified uniformed services, Police, Fire,

         18  Sanitation and Correction, are authorized to have

         19  collective bargaining directly between the City and

         20  the unions representing these positions.

         21                 We have, however, employees with

         22  police officer status who have similar job

         23  characteristics to those in uniformed services, but

         24  not the same collective bargaining.

         25                 Intro. 380-A will simply give these
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          2  unions the opportunity to have the collective

          3  bargaining they deserve. That's it.

          4                 This is not an intrusion into the

          5  Mayor's authority. This is not empower, or determine

          6  what those bargaining rights are, this is simply to

          7  give those unions that you listed earlier, and I

          8  won't list all of them, but clearly one of the first

          9  things that I started working on when I got -- even

         10  before I was elected, was the fact that traffic

         11  agents and school safety officers, and other

         12  officers that are in line, hazardous duty, in fact

         13  being assaulted by members of the community, being

         14  out on extended sick time because of those

         15  illnesses, could not get fair bargaining rights or

         16  could not get the equal health benefits or could not

         17  even get the vacation days afforded to them because

         18  of what happened to them in line of duty injury.

         19                 This is just giving them the

         20  bargaining rights with the Mayor's Office.

         21                 Unfortunately, the reality with this

         22  Mayor is he's not bargaining with unions, but you

         23  know, this still gives him an opportunity to fight

         24  for their membership, to fight for what is right, to

         25  make a stand for the fact that there is -- that they
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          2  are dealing with line of duty injuries and they

          3  should be respected.

          4                 The Committee just voted, and I'm not

          5  a member of the Committee, but I added my name to

          6  the bill because a Sanitation officer was injured in

          7  the line of duty and gave to his family the benefits

          8  that they should get. And that should be applicable

          9  to the situation here.

         10                 People should get the benefits for

         11  line of duty injuries when they're working in

         12  positions in this City that are hazardous. And like

         13  it or not, these people are working in conditions

         14  that some should not be hazardous, but the reality

         15  is they are.

         16                 We have to now supplement school

         17  safety officers with police, we have to supplement

         18  the traffic agents with police because people do not

         19  always act like human beings, or civil people.

         20                 So, these people, when they get hurt,

         21  are stuck with a lousy two-week vacation time, and

         22  that's it.

         23                 If they get a major injury -- we've

         24  had people who are school safety officers shot at in

         25  my district, and they've been out. Actually I have
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          2  two people still out because of that injury, and

          3  they actually had to lose their job because they

          4  exhausted whatever benefit time they had and the

          5  little bit of vacation time they had.

          6                 That is inherently unfair. There was

          7  a quirk in the Civil Service Law back in the

          8  seventies. This quirk is yet to be corrected. I

          9  think it's incumbent upon the Council to correct

         10  this to give people their collective bargaining

         11  right. This does not guarantee the time of vacation,

         12  it does not guarantee the benefit package, it just

         13  empowers them to have what should be given to them a

         14  long time ago.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         17  Council Member Comrie.

         18                 I totally agree with you. Some of

         19  that was mentioned in the letter of opposition,

         20  that, again, we were going beyond our bounds of

         21  jurisdiction of City Council, that we're attempting

         22  to alter the terms of employment, salaries, wages

         23  and so forth. But in essence, we are not touching

         24  that at all. It's actually the procedural matters

         25  that we are addressing here today. So, we are not
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          2  touching upon terms and conditions but basically the

          3  procedural manner, which the bargaining takes place.

          4                 And, again, how we are grouping these

          5  additional titles is by looking at their roles and

          6  responsibilities that they perform on a daily basis

          7  and the hazards that they face. And, again, I think

          8  that's a credible basis for including these titles

          9  in this piece of legislation.

         10                 So, Council Member Comrie, I agree

         11  with you totally.

         12                 Let's call up our first witness for

         13  this piece of legislation, Intro. 380-A and that's

         14  Robert Cassar. Traffic and Sanitation.

         15                 At this time I would like to also

         16  welcome a Committee member here, Council Member

         17  Allan Jennings.

         18                 Mr. Cassar, thank you very much for

         19  being here.

         20                 MR. CASSAR: Thank you, Chairman.

         21                 My name is Robert Cassar. And, of

         22  course, I am proud to be here today on behalf of

         23  nearly 2,000 active and retired traffic and

         24  sanitation and enforcement agents who belong to

         25  Local 1182 of the Communication Workers of America.
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          2                 I would like to start by thanking

          3  Speaker Miller, yourself, Chairman Addabbo, and

          4  Councilman Comrie for your courage in convening

          5  these hearings, and giving me the opportunity to

          6  testify on behalf of my members.

          7                 The members of Local 1182 believe

          8  that Intro. 380-A proposes a necessary change to the

          9  City's current Administrative Code.

         10                 This legislation would amend the

         11  collective bargaining rights of traffic and

         12  sanitation enforcement agents, reclassifying these

         13  agents as members of the City's uniformed forces.

         14                 We believe that Traffic and

         15  Sanitation Enforcement Agents have always acted as

         16  uniformed forces.

         17                 For instance, just like uniformed

         18  forces, our members enforce laws. In this case

         19  traffic and pedestrian laws. Additionally, just like

         20  any other uniformed force, we are empowered to issue

         21  summonses, carry out important public safety

         22  functions, and respond to emergencies that threaten

         23  public health and safety.

         24                 Two examples of this stand out most

         25  in my mind.
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          2                 After the tragedy of September 11th,

          3  2001, Traffic Enforcement Agents were responsible

          4  for directing vehicular and pedestrian traffic and

          5  during the blackout of August 2003 Traffic

          6  Enforcement Agents directed traffic with flashlights

          7  in order to maintain order and prevent vehicular

          8  chaos.

          9                 In each of these instances, these

         10  brave Traffic Enforcement Agents, just like Police,

         11  Fire and Emergency Medical personnel risked their

         12  own health and safety in response to an official

         13  emergency in order to enhance public safety,

         14  security and health.

         15                 Similarly, Sanitation Agents enforce

         16  Sanitation laws, and respond to weather-related

         17  emergencies that threaten the safety of our City

         18  throughout the year.

         19                 Each day traffic and Sanitation

         20  agents are also subjected to violence, when carrying

         21  out their duties.

         22                 Just like any other members of the

         23  uniformed forces, there are many instances when our

         24  members are attacked just because they're doing

         25  their job, which specifically includes the
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          2  enforcement of law.

          3                 Police officers are sometimes called

          4  upon to carry our traffic control and traffic

          5  enforcement functions. This, in my opinion, makes it

          6  clear that these jobs are in fact uniformed service

          7  jobs.

          8                 In 2001, the Council passed Intro.

          9  641, which amended the Administrative Code to be

         10  classified emergency medical technicians as members

         11  of the City's uniformed services.

         12                 The legislation was vetoed by the

         13  Mayor's Office, but recognizing the importance of

         14  this legislation, the Council overrode the veto and

         15  the legislation was passed into law.

         16                 The members of Local 1182 ensure that

         17  traffic can smoothly flow through the streets, and

         18  those who illegally dumped are caught and fined.

         19  Their efforts are essential to the health of the

         20  City and our economy.

         21                 Since the actual work conditions of

         22  Traffic and Sanitation Workers are more similar to

         23  those of the uniformed services than those of

         24  civilian workers, why should Traffic and Sanitation

         25  Enforcement Agents who enforce law, respond to
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          2  emergencies and place their lives at risk, be

          3  afforded fewer rights than other uniformed

          4  personnel?

          5                 My members are hard-working New York

          6  City residents who have devoted their lives to

          7  enforcing the law and preserving quality of life

          8  issues for millions of New York City residents.

          9                 The law enforcement and public safety

         10  professionals of New York City, whether they are

         11  police officers, firefighters, paramedics,

         12  Correction officers, Traffic Enforcement Agents, or

         13  Sanitation Enforcement Agents provide vital services

         14  that benefit the entire region. The members of Local

         15  1182, not only respond to emergencies like EMT

         16  personnel, they also enforce laws.

         17                 For all of these reasons, they

         18  deserve equal protection and benefits under the law.

         19                 Thank you for your time and your

         20  consideration.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Cassar,

         22  thank you very much for your time and testimony

         23  today. And, again, I thank your membership also for

         24  doing the work that they do throughout the City.

         25  Thank you. Thank you very much.
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          2                 Just a quick question. How many

          3  members would you say, are your members that would

          4  be affected by this legislation if it was passed? A

          5  number if you have it.

          6                 MR. CASSAR: Two-thousand and

          7  forty-two members.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Any other questions from my

         11  colleagues?

         12                 Seeing none, thank you very much, Mr.

         13  Cassar.

         14                 MR. CASSAR: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good to see you

         16  again.

         17                 MR. CASSAR: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: At this point

         19  I'm going to take a vote on this Intro, since I know

         20  my colleagues have other engagements and other

         21  pressing matters to go to at this point.

         22                 Again, as Chair of the Civil Service

         23  and Labor Committee, again, I totally endorse the

         24  two intros that we are voting on today. Intro. 380-A

         25  again is the collective bargaining rights intro,
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          2  which we are discussing now. And Intro. 602 that

          3  we'll be voting on is the benefits for the surviving

          4  spouse, domestic partner and children for deceased

          5  Correction and Sanitation workers.

          6                 And I believe we're also going to

          7  file Intro. 292 as well. So if you'll begin with the

          8  roll, I would appreciate it.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         10  Addabbo.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes on all.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jennings.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes on all.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Permission

         18  to explain my vote?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: First of

         21  all, thank you, Council Member Addabbo, Chairman,

         22  and Comrie, Council Member Comrie. I just want to

         23  say that anything that brings back respect and

         24  dignity and strengthens collective bargaining rights

         25  is something that I truly believe in. It is the
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          2  reason why we were elected, and I take great pride

          3  today, and I want to say that I am Sponsor No. 35, I

          4  believe, on this bill. So, I thank you. I thank

          5  everyone that gave testimony today, and I thank the

          6  body.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of five in

         11  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         12  abstentions, all items are adopted, and Intro. No.

         13  292 is filed.

         14                 Council members, please sign the

         15  Committee reports. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 At this point I'm going to call the

         19  next panel for Intro. 380-A. That would be a panel

         20  of four.

         21                 We have George Geller, Pete

         22  Gutierrez, Steve Gordon, that's Local 237. Also John

         23  Thomas, TLC Local 237.

         24                 Thank you very much. Please just

         25  state your name for the record and give your
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          2  testimony, please.

          3                 MR. GELLER: I'm George Geller,

          4  Special Assistant to Carl Haynes, the President of

          5  Teamsters Local 237.

          6                 As I understand it, the Council has

          7  already acted affirmatively on the legislation. We

          8  are here to support. I am reminded of my first

          9  appearance as a lawyer in court. The judge said, Mr.

         10  Geller, we've read your brief, we voted in your

         11  favor. If you want to argue the case and see if you

         12  can change our mind, we invite you to, but we

         13  suggest you sit down. So, I'll be brief in my

         14  remarks.

         15                 As previously was explained by the

         16  able Councilman Comrie, and by our brother, Robert

         17  Cassar, of the Traffic Enforcement Unit, all this

         18  bill does is allow peace officers, uniformed peace

         19  officers, who function much like NYPD patrolmen, to

         20  bargain separate from civilian employees on the

         21  particular needs that face them as peace officers.

         22                 Local 237 represents 5,000 peace

         23  officers, roughly 5,000 that would be affected by

         24  this legislation, including 4,000 School Safety

         25  Agents, and numerous inspectors of the Taxi and
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          2  Limousine Commission, the brave special officers who

          3  guard Department of Juvenile Justice, Department of

          4  Homeless Services and Department of Health

          5  Facilities, park and control unit specialists, who

          6  are very much similar in their work to the traffic

          7  enforcement agents, and face the same dangers from

          8  irate citizens. So, what you have in the 237

          9  complement here, are people who function day-to-day

         10  in, as I said, much the same fashion as a police

         11  officer. Our people issue summonses, they make

         12  arrests, they book prisoners, many of them guard

         13  large facilities where they are responsible for

         14  evicting loiterers or disruptive persons, people

         15  wear the uniform, that's the most important thing,

         16  and they personify the rule of law in many

         17  situations where that rule comes under attack. I can

         18  offer specific examples of the dangers our people

         19  face. Obviously the most publicized involves the

         20  School Safety Agents.

         21                 Just the other day they confiscated a

         22  loaded firearm from a student at Grady High School.

         23  They have been shot. We had the case of our Sister

         24  Waldo again, in Councilman Comrie's district, who

         25  was shot. The same thing has befallen Taxi and
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          2  Limousine Commission Inspectors who have been

          3  stabbed. We have had numerous similar incidents at

          4  the homeless shelters. Our people are on the line.

          5  They face hazards and they deserve separate

          6  collective bargaining that can address their

          7  particular needs.

          8                 I will just reemphasize two points,

          9  although better and more eloquently made by Brother

         10  Cassar and Councilman Comrie, and Councilman

         11  Addabbo, who has long been our friend, as was his

         12  father before him, this bill does not commit the

         13  City to one thin extra dime, and their letter is

         14  deceptive on that point.

         15                 This Council is not trying to control

         16  the substantive outcome of negotiation, that would

         17  remain for the City bargainers, who should have more

         18  confidence in themselves, and should have the

         19  confidence to negotiate with a legitimate bargaining

         20  unit on the specific issues that confront that unit,

         21  which are non-civilian issues.

         22                 Secondly, it should be noted that

         23  this legislation is analogous to a bill that already

         24  created a separate bargaining unit for the emergency

         25  medical techs, as Brother Cassar pointed out. He
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          2  stole all my good lines. What the City neglects to

          3  point out is that so far at the trial court level,

          4  the Council has been affirmed in the propriety of

          5  passing that legislation. And the City, I believe,

          6  is unduly belaboring this situation by taking that

          7  through appeals.

          8                 All we want to do is create the

          9  proper shape of the table for bargaining. That's all

         10  we're asking for. We're not asking for a dime from

         11  this Council. We feel we can bargain on behalf of

         12  the brave peace officers we represent. We think the

         13  City should be brave enough to bargain with them in

         14  a legitimate forum.

         15                 And that concludes our testimony. We

         16  know the Council is busy. I have with me here, in

         17  case you have any questions for them, brave peace

         18  officers who serve in these titles. Steve Gordon,

         19  who has been a school safety agent for many years,

         20  and now is a business representative of the local,

         21  Pete Gutierrez, who has been a special officer and

         22  is our Assistant Director of the Citywide Division

         23  of Local 237, and John Thomas, who is a Taxi and

         24  Limousine Commission Inspector. They are here to

         25  show solidarity in the rank and file support for
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          2  this bill. And as I say, any questions the Council

          3  may have of us, they can offer special insights

          4  beyond my own. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I do thank you

          6  for your time and testimony. And, gentlemen, I do

          7  thank you also for the work that you do.

          8                 Just a little housekeeping here,

          9  again, if I may for one moment? I want to welcome

         10  Council Member Christine Quinn for being here today

         11  (sic). Thank you very much, Council Member Quinn.

         12                 And my apology, there were four

         13  titles that I failed to mention in my first

         14  run-through of the titles that are added by Intro.

         15  388. So, I will add them now, and thank you very

         16  much for reminding me.

         17                 Supervisors are fire protection

         18  investigators. Supervisors of Traffic Enforcement

         19  Agents. Supervisors of School Safety Agents.

         20  Supervisors of Sanitation Enforcement Agents. So,

         21  they are added as well. Thank you very much for

         22  pointing that out.

         23                 MR. GUTIERREZ: I would just say we

         24  really appreciate your support. And for someone

         25  that's been representing peace officers for over 23
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          2  years, this is long overdue. And we have the

          3  uniform, we need to support it. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I appreciate

          5  that.

          6                 Do you have any idea of how many of

          7  the members come in contact with hazardous, whether

          8  it be situations or illnesses? Do you keep track of

          9  that at all, basically on the membership?

         10                 MR. GELLER: We do indeed. We took a

         11  survey of the principal group that would be covered

         12  by this, the largest group, by no means the only

         13  one, the 4,400 some odd School Safety Agents. Of the

         14  responding agents, I have the statistics here to our

         15  survey. The numbers were actually astronomical.

         16  Nearly two-thirds of them had been injured on the

         17  job, and some 37 percent of them had been out of

         18  work for more than a week recuperating from

         19  on-the-job injury.

         20                 So that gives you some sense of the

         21  hazards they face, beyond the coverage that we all

         22  read daily of incidents in the schools. Gang-related

         23  violence which we are now advised is on the

         24  up-swing, the requirement that supplemental New York

         25  City police patrolmen come into 18 of the schools.
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          2  It's not the dirty dozen anymore, it's up to 18. So,

          3  that suggests the hazards that the largest group we

          4  have would face.

          5                 We have less statistical evidence on

          6  the Department of Juvenile Justice homeless

          7  services, but the very venues they suggest to you

          8  some of the dangers they face.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again,

         10  gentlemen, thank you very much for your time and

         11  testimony today. And also for the work that you do

         12  in the City. Thank you very much.

         13                 Are there any questions at this

         14  point? None. Thank you. Thank you very much.

         15                 And our last panel for today, we have

         16  Joe Puleo, from DC 37, Local 983. Julius Squillano,

         17  Fire Protection Inspectors. Darryl Chalmers,

         18  President of Fire Protection Inspectors, and Tom

         19  Doyle, President of New York City Deputy Sheriffs'

         20  Association.

         21                 Please step forward.

         22                 Gentlemen, if you can just please

         23  state your name and your affiliation, and give your

         24  testimony, please.

         25                 MR. PULEO: Okay, my name is Joseph
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          2  Puleo. I'm Vice President of DC 37 Local 983.

          3                 I'd like to begin by thanking Gifford

          4  Miller, Joe, yourself, Councilman Comrie. I think

          5  everyone here pretty much has a good idea of what's

          6  going on. What we're asking for is nothing extra.

          7  All we want is the ability to bargain directly with

          8  the City of New York. That is all that we want here

          9  today.

         10                 I'm going to talk a little briefly

         11  about my titles. I represent the Traffic

         12  Enforcements, Levels 3 and Levels 4. Levels 3 tow

         13  your vehicle. Fortunately nobody here. Yes, they do

         14  a good job.

         15                 We have the traffic Levels 4, okay?

         16  They're all peace officers, and of course, the Urban

         17  Park Rangers and the Associate Urban Park Rangers.

         18  All of these titles work in inclement weather, they

         19  work rotating shifts, they work 24 hours, 24 hours

         20  of service, and these individuals deserve the right

         21  to have the direct ability to bargain with the City

         22  of New York.

         23                 I'll leave the rest of my time with

         24  the other locals.

         25                 MR. DOYLE: I'm Tom Doyle. I'm the
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          2  president of the Deputy Sheriffs Association. I just

          3  want to thank the Chair and the Committee, and the

          4  Speaker, actually, for giving us this opportunity.

          5                 Just to reiterate a little the stuff

          6  that's already in the introduction. Our members are

          7  instructed in deadly physical force and use of

          8  firearms and other weapons.

          9                 Besides being armed peace officers,

         10  Deputy Sheriffs are trained with batons and pepper

         11  spray, and respond to life-threatening situations

         12  and perform Kendra's Law removals. They have

         13  performed over 1,100 Kendra's Law removals since its

         14  inception in 2000, and along with the Family Court

         15  warrants of arrest, which our members perform are

         16  inherently dangerous to the volatile situations and

         17  emotions that are present on a daily basis.

         18                 Not to belabor the issue, we also are

         19  an integral part of the Office of Emergency

         20  Management and have responded to the West Nile

         21  Virus, Y 2K, the blackout and, of course, 9/11. Our

         22  members perform criminal arrests while on patrol,

         23  execute warrants and mandates of all of the courts.

         24  And, again, not to be long-winded, but I just want

         25  to thank the Committee and the Speaker and the
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          2  Chair, especially, and to reiterate the sponsor's

          3  words, this legislation corrects a glaring injustice

          4  in our bargaining process. I don't know about the

          5  other locals, we're presently five years without a

          6  contract, so this really does correct an injustice.

          7                 So, thank you.

          8                 MR. CHALMERS: Thank you. My name is

          9  Darryl Chalmers. I'm the President of the Fire

         10  Protection Inspectors for the New York City Fire

         11  Department, and the supervisors. I have with me also

         12  my Vice President Julius Squillano. The Fire

         13  Protection Inspectors, we are peace officers and we

         14  write criminal summonses throughout the City of New

         15  York.

         16                 I'm just going to give you a little

         17  rundown. We represent, there are 250 of us, and 85

         18  percent of us are members of minority

         19  representation. We are public safety professionals.

         20                 We all are peace officers, like I

         21  said before, we all write criminal summonses. We

         22  conduct investigations of fires in residential,

         23  commercial buildings side by side with the fire

         24  marshals.

         25                 Fire protection inspectors witness
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          2  testings of sprinkler systems, standpipe systems,

          3  and we also inspect all high-rise buildings

          4  throughout the City of New York to keep buildings

          5  safe.

          6                 We enforce the multiple fire safety

          7  code requirements and fire protection inspectors

          8  ensure safety concerning special events, concerts,

          9  movie sets, broadway shows, parades, and especially

         10  I know everybody in here likes to go to Macy's

         11  fireworks, it's us, the fire protection inspectors,

         12  who are out there in the barge, in the water, every

         13  time you see a firework show going off for the past,

         14  I can't even go back on how many years, we're the

         15  ones out there.

         16                 We wear the same uniform as the

         17  firefighters, the fire protection inspectors. We

         18  work out of the fire house with the firefighters,

         19  but we do not have the uniformed status in

         20  bargaining.

         21                 In fact, a lot of the firefighters

         22  have stated to us that they believe that we should

         23  be uniformed along with them. I just want to read

         24  just off of, just one more quick statement. I'm not

         25  going to take too much of the Committee's time. I
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          2  know other people have to speak.

          3                 I think this bill is excellent for

          4  all of us - for the traffic agents, for the

          5  Sheriffs, for even the people who told everybody in

          6  here. All we're asking is that we be able to bargain

          7  separately. That's it. We're not asking anything

          8  else from the City. We're not asking the City to

          9  give us any extra money. None of that. Just to

         10  bargain separately. That's all we want.

         11                 We all have dangerous jobs out there,

         12  and they're very hazardous. Everybody knows that.

         13  And all we're asking is that the Committee, and we

         14  thank you for having this, because it's way overdue.

         15                 As my brother here from the other

         16  union with the Sheriffs, it's way overdue. Five

         17  years and doesn't have a contract. That's bad.

         18                 And I thank the Committee for pushing

         19  this, and we all thank you. That's all I have to

         20  say. Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you. You

         22  said it all.

         23                 Council Member Quinn.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. I

         25  want to apologize for not being here at the whole
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          2  hearing. I had a meeting I had to be at. But I just

          3  wanted to add my voice to the others of the Council,

          4  in first thanking Council Member Comrie, and

          5  Chairperson Addabbo, for bringing this issue forward

          6  in legislation, and also making sure it got a timely

          7  hearing today, and it will move forward, 380-A, for

          8  a vote and then eventually to become the law and

          9  procedure of this City.

         10                 I just want to say I'm proud to be a

         11  sponsor of that bill, and certainly as the Chair of

         12  the Health Committee know well what the officers who

         13  protect our hospitals and our DOH and clinic

         14  facilities do every day and to make a distinction

         15  there and treat them differently in the bargaining

         16  process is to not understand their job. You know,

         17  and one only need think back a couple of months to

         18  the shortage of flu shots, to see just how crazy

         19  things can get at our facilities and why we need

         20  top-notch peace officers there, who can deal with

         21  really crazy situations, and we need to make sure we

         22  keep those people and get more people like them, and

         23  the only way you do that is to give them the wages

         24  and benefits they deserve. The only way we're going

         25  to get that is if you have a fair playing field in
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          2  the negotiation process.

          3                 So, thank you, again, Council Member

          4  Comrie and Chairperson Addabbo, for bringing this

          5  forward today.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          7  Council Member Quinn.

          8                 The prime sponsor of this

          9  legislation, Council Member Comrie.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I just wanted

         11  to thank you for coming down today. I know it's been

         12  a long hard road. You know, I didn't get a chance to

         13  thank the Committee after their vote, but this is

         14  clearly a piece of legislation that's intended to

         15  correct a wrong, and I wish you all the best with

         16  the necessary bargaining you have to do, to still

         17  get your full realization of this opportunity. But

         18  it's something that clearly I wanted to do for you,

         19  for the uniformed members, that are in hazardous

         20  positions, fighting to maintain our City's safety.

         21  So, thank you all very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you. Thank

         23  you, Council Member Comrie.

         24                 And, again, I also thank you and your

         25  membership for the work they do throughout the City.
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          2  Thank you very much for your dedication. And I do

          3  think, actually I know this legislation is long

          4  overdue, so we will look forward to hopefully

          5  working with the Administration in implementing this

          6  piece of legislation. But gentlemen, thank you very

          7  much for your time and testimony today.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 Seeing no other witnesses to sign up

         10  and give testimony, I want to thank you all for

         11  being here today, and I thank my colleagues. I want

         12  to thank the Sergeant-at-Arms for helping us here

         13  today. Thank you, gentlemen.

         14                 Ladies and gentlemen, have a great

         15  day. Thank you. Meeting adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 2:30 p.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 29th day of March 2005.
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